

# Infor Distribution FACTS 7.9.0 Sales Analysis Users Guide

#### Copyright © 2014 Infor

#### **Important Notices**

The material contained in this publication (including any supplementary information) constitutes and contains confidential and proprietary information of Infor.

By gaining access to the attached, you acknowledge and agree that the material (including any modification, translation or adaptation of the material) and all copyright, trade secrets and all other right, title and interest therein, are the sole property of Infor and that you shall not gain right, title or interest in the material (including any modification, translation or adaptation of the material) by virtue of your review thereof other than the non-exclusive right to use the material solely in connection with and the furtherance of your license and use of software made available to your company from Infor pursuant to a separate agreement, the terms of which separate agreement shall govern your use of this material and all supplemental related materials ("Purpose").

In addition, by accessing the enclosed material, you acknowledge and agree that you are required to maintain such material in strict confidence and that your use of such material is limited to the Purpose described above. Although Infor has taken due care to ensure that the material included in this publication is accurate and complete, Infor cannot warrant that the information contained in this publication is complete, does not contain typographical or other errors, or will meet your specific requirements. As such, Infor does not assume and hereby disclaims all liability, consequential or otherwise, for any loss or damage to any person or entity which is caused by or relates to errors or omissions in this publication (including any supplementary information), whether such errors or omissions result from negligence, accident or any other cause.

Without limitation, U.S. export control laws and other applicable export and import laws govern your use of this material and you will neither export or re-export, directly or indirectly, this material nor any related materials or supplemental information in violation of such laws, or use such materials for any purpose prohibited by such laws.

#### **Trademark Acknowledgements**

The word and design marks set forth herein are trademarks and/or registered trademarks of Infor and/or related affiliates and subsidiaries. All rights reserved. All other company, product, trade or service names referenced may be registered trademarks or trademarks of their respective owners.

#### **Publication Information**

Release: Infor Distribution FACTS 7.9.0

Publication date: October 15, 2014

# Contents

About this guide	5
Intended audience	5
Related documents	5
Contacting Infor	5
Sales Analysis	7
Overview	7
SA Work Flow & Program Concepts	8
Sales Analysis Inquiry Work Flow	8
Customer Reports Work Flow	9
Salesperson/Territory Reports Work Flow	10
Item Reports Work Flow	11
Commissions Work Flow	13
SA File Maintenances Work Flow	15
SA Transaction Procedures	17
Recommended Operating Procedures	17
Daily Procedures (or as needed)	17
Posting invoices to sales analysis	17

# About this guide

This guide describes workflow, concepts and procedures for using Infor Distribution FACTS Sales Analysis Module.

## Intended audience

This guide is for Infor Distribution FACTS end users, managers, in-house analysts, and trainers who require an understanding of the product and how to use it.

## Related documents

You can find the documents in the product documentation section of InforXtreme, as described in "Contacting Infor" on page 5.

For information about other Infor Distribution FACTS modules or basic usage information, see the other users guides in the FACTS PDF Library. Access these documents from the bookmarks of this document: FACTSDocNavigation.pdf.

# **Contacting Infor**

If you have questions about Infor products, go to InforXtreme Online Support at <a href="http://www.inforxtreme.com">http://www.inforxtreme.com</a>.

If we update this document after the product release, we will post the new version on InforXtreme. We recommend that you check this Web site periodically for updated documentation.

If you have comments about Infor documentation, contact documentation@infor.com.

About this guide			

# Sales Analysis

#### Overview

The Infor Distribution FACTS Sales Analysis module maintains accurate file information that has been posted from other modules in the system.

The Sales Analysis module is divided into the following menus:

Inquiries

Reports & Prints, including Customer Reports, Salesperson/Territory Reports, Item Reports and the Branch Report

Commissions

File Maintenance, including Infrequent F/Ms.

All information stored in Sales Analysis is created in the Accounts Receivable, Sales Orders, Job Cost, and Equipment Rental modules. The sales information is posted from the AR Invoice Register, JC Invoice Register, and ER Daily Rental Register and the SO Daily Sales Register.

You can determine which modules sales information the SA module uses via settings in the SA Static Control F/M program.

Most files in the Sales Analysis system store 26 periods of information. Customer, salesperson/territory and branch information includes sales, cost, gross margin \$ and gross margin %. Item information includes sales, cost, gross margin \$, gross margin % and units. Two additional files store customer/item month-to-date and year-to-date information and current period item/invoice information.

In all SA multi-period reports, you can select one of the three following available formats: 1) accumulations of sums, 2) comparison of any range of periods to any other range (i.e., current year to previous year), including variance and 3) multiple periods printing up to twelve periods selected.

You can also set which of the available figures to print and the order in which they print (sales, cost, gross margin \$, gross margin % and units). In addition to the figures, you can set a cutoff to exclude figures above or below a certain number. You can also flag reports to print figures in descending order.

Infor Distribution EACTS 7.0.0 Sales Applysis Licers Quidel 7

## SA Work Flow & Program Concepts

#### Sales Analysis Inquiry Work Flow

Use the Inquiry programs to view historical data by customer, item, salesperson, and branch for the current period and 26 previous periods.

The program provides historical sales information for the following:

Customer Inquiry provides historical sales information, such as sales, cost of goods sold, gross margin and gross margin percentage, for each customer on record. Accumulated, Comparison, Multiperiod and Graph formats are available in this inquiry. When you access this screen, the system displays the current period for your company.

Item/Warehouse Inquiry allows you to review historical sales information for items by warehouse and shipment type so that you can track sales from inventory vs. sales direct from the vendor. Information provided includes sales, cost of goods sold, gross margin and gross margin percentage and can be viewed in Accumulated, Comparison, Multiperiod and Graph format.

Item Inquiry allows you to review historical sales information, such as sales, cost of goods sold, gross margin and gross margin percentage, for specific items. This information is available in Accumulated, Comparison, Multiperiod or Graph format.

Item/Invoice Inquiry allows you to enter an item number and view the list of invoices on which that item appears. The browser in the lower portion of the screen lists the invoice lines in descending invoice number order so that the more recent invoices display first. This inquiry also shows you the customer number, date of invoice, warehouse, amount of sale, cost of sale, gross margin, gross margin percent, how many units were ordered and the unit of measure (actual and default).

Salesperson/Territory Inquiry enables you to review historical sales information, such as sales, cost of goods sold, gross margin and gross margin percentage, for different salespeople on record.

Temporary item Inquiry allows you to analyze sales of temporary items by warehouse.

Item class Inquiry enables you to review historical sales information by item class (i.e. dock equipment, warehouse equipment, etc.)

Lot item Inquiry allows you review and track lot item sales by warehouse. FACTS displays the lot numbers, the vendor from which the lot item was purchased (including P.O. number and date), the customers to whom the item has been sold (including invoice number and date), the number of units sold to that customer and the unit price.

Customer/item Inquiry This program allows you to review sales of a specific item by customer. This inquiry can help you track customer buying patterns and the buying patterns of a customer's different locations.

Serial item Inquiry This program is similar to the Lot Item Inquiry. It allows you to review and track sales of items that have been assigned serial numbers. For each serialized item, FACTS displays the serial numbers assigned to the item and, under that, vendor information (including P.O. number and date), the customers to which the serial item has been sold (including invoice number and date), as well as unit price and unit cost.

Customer/item PTD, YTD Inquiry This program allows you to review a customer's period-to-date and year-to-date purchases for a specific item. You can also track customer buying patterns for the period or year for each customer location.

Commissions Inquiry This program enables you to review a salesperson's commissions by invoice. For each invoice listed, the program displays the invoice date, the branch, customer, invoice total (sales), cost of goods sold, the percentage of commission, the actual amount of commission, and the status of the commission, i.e., whether or not the commission was paid.

Customer item class Inquiry This program allows you to review customer purchasing patterns in terms of specific groups of items, or item classes.

Branch Inquiry This program enables you to review historical sales information by branch. You can view this inquiry in Accumulated, Comparison, Multiperiod and Graph format.

Salesperson/item class Inquiry This program allows you to track a salesperson's historical sales data in terms of item classes, or user-defined groups of items.

Sales Analysis information can be viewed in four formats:

Accumulated displays the sales dollars, cost, gross margin (\$), gross margin (%) and, in item and item class inquiries, units for the current period, previous period, year-to-date, prior year-to-date, prior year, past 6 periods and past 12 periods.

When making comparison between year-to-date figures and prior year figures, keep in mind that year-to-date figures include the current period; however, prior-year-to-date figures exclude the current period 12 months ago. As a result, more accurate comparison can be made at the beginning of each period.

Comparison format provides a historical comparison of the sales dollars, cost, gross margin (\$), gross margin (%) and, in item and item class inquiries, units. This format requires you to enter a beginning and ending period as well as the number of past periods to compare. Historical comparison data will display for:

- the current period vs. the corresponding period for the prior year
- the entered range of periods for the current year vs. the corresponding range of periods for the prior year
- the difference between the two periods in percentage

Multiperiod format displays the sales dollars, cost, gross margin (\$), gross margin (%) and units (for item and item class inquiries only) for the current period and the previous periods you specify.

The Chart displays sales, cost, gross margin or units (in item and item class information) in a graphical format. Graphs also allow comparison graphing of sales vs. gross margin or any other combination of sales, cost, and gross margin.

#### **Customer Reports Work Flow**

The Sales Analysis Customer reports allow you to analyze sales for an individual customer or a range of customers. All multiperiod reports access 26 previous periods of customer information plus the current period. Current period information and the 26 previous periods of information is printed in whole numbers. Multiperiod reports print in three formats -

comparison, multiperiod, and accumulated. The Customer/Item MTD, YTD Report displays for the customer(s) and item(s) chosen, month-to-date and year-to-date sales information.

Report information includes the following:

- Accumulated customer number and name, item number and description, sales, cost, gross margin (\$) and/or gross margin (%) for the ending period selected and the range of periods selected.
- Comparison customer number and name, item number and description, sales, cost, gross margin (\$) and/or gross margin (%) for the ending period selected, the period selected for the comparison, and the percentage difference, and the range of periods selected, range selected for comparison and the percentage difference.
- Multiperiod customer number and name, item number and description, sales, cost, gross margin (\$) and/or gross margin (%) for each period within the range of periods selected plus a total for each period and for the range of periods.

In all three formats report, totals are included and, if customer class or salesperson/territory print order is selected, then subtotals are printed. The total number of customers listed is also included.

Templates that store "current period" (or similar values like "system date") resolve to the "current period at the time the report is run" rather than what the "current period" was at the time the template was created. For example: If you save a template for the Customer/Item Multiperiod Analysis and select "Current Period" for the Beginning Period field, when that template is selected to run again (either manually or via Job Stream) the current period will be derived based on the setting of Current period in the Nonstatic Control F/M (SAF990) when the report is run not the period when the template was created.

The following reports are located on this menu:

Customer Multiperiod Analysis (SAR210), which is used to print customer information stored in the SA customer file in three formats.

Customer/Item Class Multiperiod Analysis (SAR220), which is used to print item class information by customer stored in the SA customer/item class file in three formats.

Customer/Item Multiperiod Analysis (SAR230), which is used to print item information by customer stored in the SA customer/item file in three formats.

Customer/Item MTD, YTD Analysis (SAR240), which is used to print month-to-date and year-to-date customer/Item information stored in the SA customer/Item file. Report information includes the following: customer number and name, item and description(s), ship-to number and name, selling unit of measure, last purchase date, number of invoices, and month-to-date and/or year-to-date, sales, cost, gross margin (\$), gross margin (%) and/or units. Customer totals are included and if customer class or salesperson/ territory print order is selected, then subtotals are printed. The total number of customers listed is also included.

#### Salesperson/Territory Reports Work Flow

The Sales Analysis Salesperson/Territory reports allow you to analyze sales for an individual salesperson, range of salespeople or a region or range of regions. All multiperiod reports access 26 previous periods of salesperson/territory information plus the current period.

Current period information and the 26 previous period's information are printed in whole numbers. Multiperiod reports print in three formats — comparison, multiperiod, and accumulated.

Report information includes the following:

- Accumulated salesperson number and name, item class and description, sales, cost, gross margin (\$) and/or gross margin (%) for the ending period selected and the range of periods selected.
- Comparison salesperson number and name, item class and description, sales, cost, gross margin (\$) and/or gross margin (%) for the ending period selected, the period selected for the comparison, and the percentage difference, and the range of periods selected, range selected for comparison and the percentage difference.
- Multiperiod salesperson number and name, item class and description, sales, cost, gross margin (\$) and/or gross margin (%) for each period within the range of periods selected plus a total for each period and for the range of periods.

The total number of salespeople listed is also included.

Templates that store "current period" (or similar values like "system date") resolve to the "current period at the time the report is run" rather than what the "current period" was at the time the template was created. For example: If you save a template for the Salesperson/Territory Item Multiperiod Analysis and select "Current Period" for the Beginning Period field, when that template is selected to run again (either manually or via Job Stream) the current period will be derived based on the setting of Current period in the Nonstatic Control F/M (SAF990) when the report is run not the period when the template was created.

The following reports are located on this menu:

Salesperson/Territory Multiperiod Analysis (SAR310), which is used to print salesperson/territory information stored in the SA salesperson file in three formats.

Salesperson/Territory Item Class Multiperiod Analysis (SAR320), which is used to print item class information by salesperson stored in the SA salesperson item class file in three formats.

#### **Item Reports Work Flow**

Use the Sales Analysis Item Reports to analyze sales for individual items or item classes or a range of items or item classes.

All multiperiod reports access 26 previous periods of item or item class information plus information from the current period. Current period information and the 26 previous periods information print in whole numbers. Multiperiod reports print in three formats — comparison, multiperiod, and accumulated.

Report information includes the following:

- Accumulated item number and description, sales, cost, gross margin (\$), gross margin
  (%) and/or units for the ending period selected and the range of periods selected.
- Comparison item number and description, sales, cost, gross margin (\$), gross margin (%), units, average cost, and/or average price for the ending period selected, the period selected

for the comparison and the percentage difference, and the range of periods selected, range selected for comparison and the percentage difference

• Multiperiod - item number and description, sales, cost, gross margin (\$), gross margin (%), units, average cost and/or average price for each period within the range of periods selected plus a total for each period and for the range of periods.

In the three formats, item and report totals and the total number of items listed are printed. If the print order selected is vendor, the report prints item class totals within vendor and vendor totals. If the print order selected is item class, the reports prints vendor totals within item class and item class totals.

Templates that store "current period" (or similar values like "system date") resolve to the "current period at the time the report is run" rather than what the "current period" was at the time the template was created. For example: If you save a template for the Item Multiperiod Analysis and select "Current Period" for the Beginning Period field, when that template is selected to run again (either manually or via Job Stream) the current period will be derived based on the setting of Current period in the Nonstatic Control F/M (SAF990) when the report is run not the period when the template was created.

#### **FACTS Report Formatter and Multiple Output Options**

This report has access to the FACTS Report Formatter and Multiple Output option. The Multiple Output option allows you to print to more than one output for each instance of a report. For example, a report can print to Excel, the viewer, and to a printer all in one print run. To access the multiple output feature simply choose the Multiple option from the Print Options screen. The FACTS Report Formatter allows you to expand your reporting capabilities beyond defining a printer (in Printer F/M). To access the FACTS Report Formatter, select Custom Report Layout>Customize Report from the menu bar.

The following programs are available from the Item Reports menu:

Item Multiperiod Analysis (SAR410), which is used to print item information stored in the SA item file in three formats.

Item Class Multiperiod Analysis (SAR420), which is used to print item class information stored in the SA item class file in three formats.

Item/Customer Multiperiod Analysis (SAR430), which is used to print customer information by item stored in the SA item/customer file in three formats.

Item/Customer MTD, YTD Analysis (SAR440), which is used to print month-to-date and year-to-date item/customer information stored in the SA item/customer file. Report information includes the following: item number, description, customer number and name, ship-to number and name, selling unit of measure, customer number, name, last purchase date and month-to-date and/or year-to-date number of invoices, sales, cost, gross margin (\$), gross margin (%) and/or units. Item and report totals and the total number of items listed are printed. If the print order selected is vendor, the report prints item class totals within vendor and vendor totals. If the print order selected is item class, the report prints vendor totals within item class and item class totals.

Item Class/Customer Multiperiod Analysis (SAR450), which is used to print customer by item class information stored in the SA item class/customer file in three formats.

Item Class/SLSP Multiperiod Analysis (SAR460), which is used to print salesperson information by item class stored in the SA item class/salesperson file in three formats.

Item/Warehouse Multiperiod Analysis (SAR470), which is used to print item/ warehouse information stored in the SA item/warehouse file in three formats. In the three formats, item and report totals and the total number of items listed are printed. If the print order selected is vendor, the report prints item class totals within vendor and vendor totals. If the print order selected is item class, the report prints vendor totals within item class and item class totals. If printing in item/warehouse order, item totals are printed and, if printing in warehouse/item order, warehouse totals are printed.

Current Period Item/Invoice Analysis (SAR480), which is used to print invoice by item information for the current period.

Temporary Item Report (SAR485), which is used to print a report of all temporary items sold. Report information includes the following: the item number and description, units sold, selling unit of measure, sales, cost, gross margin (\$), gross margin (%) and units. Warehouse and report totals are printed. If the report order selected is item class, item class totals are also printed. The total number of items listed is also included.

Item Lots Report (SAR490), which is used to print a report of item lot information. Report information includes the following: warehouse and description, item number and description and for each lot number, number, receipt date, cost, costing unit of measure, PO number and vendor. For each invoice the lot sold on, invoice number, sale date, customer number and name, units sold, selling unit of measure, price, pricing unit of measure and extension is printed. An asterisk (\*) indicates the lot is still on file in inventory. Lot, item, warehouse and report totals are printed and the total number of items listed is also included.

Serial Item Report (SAR495), which is used to print purchasing and sales information of serialized items. Report information includes warehouse and description, item number and description and for each serial number; the purchasing information includes the receipt date, cost, costing unit of measure, purchase order number and vendor; the sales information includes the sale date, price, pricing unit of measure, invoice number, customer number and name. An asterisk (\*) indicates the serial number is still on file in inventory. Item, warehouse and report totals are printed. The total number of items listed is also included.

Branch Multiperiod Analysis (SAR510), which is used to print branch information stored in the SA branch file in three formats.

#### **Commissions Work Flow**

The Commissions sub module is used to enter, correct and track commissions for sales. Commissions Entry/Correction F/M (SAE910) allows you to enter/correct commissions in the commission file. The information in this file is used to print the Commission Report. The Commission Report prints a commission report for each salesman. Commissions may be based on the salesman's %, item % of customer % as set by the priority in the company static control record and may be calculated on gross sales or gross margin. The report divides commissions into paid and unpaid sales. In order to bring these sales up to date when the Commission Report is run, users must run the Flag Commissions For Payment program. This program runs through each invoice for each salesperson/territory and flags the invoice as to whether it has been paid. The Commission Report is not related to SA periods

but rather to the invoice dates. You can run it, as needed, by date and optionally remove records after the report is printed.

The following programs are located on this menu:

Commission Entry/Correction F/M, which is used to enter/correct commissions in the commission file. The Commission Entry/Correction screen consists of two sections. The upper portion of the screen is called the header portion where salesperson, invoice, etc. is entered. The lower portion is called the line-item portion where each item, price, quantity, etc. is entered. While maintaining the commission file, you have the option of changing, adding to line-items or deleting the commission records.

Commission Report (SAR330), which is used to print a Commission Report to determine which invoices have commissions eligible for payment. Commissions may be based on the percentage assigned to the salesperson, customer or item and is set up in the SM Company Control F/M. Commissions are then calculated based on sales or gross margin depending on the flag set in the SA Static Control F/M.

Through the Flag Commissions for Payment program, you can flag which invoices have been paid by customers and then choose to print paid and/or unpaid invoices on the report. The optional update removes only printed invoices with the status of paid. Pay and hold totals are included by customer (optional), salesperson and report, and the total number of salespeople listed is also included.

#### Report information includes:

- Summary: salesperson number and name, customer number and name, invoice number, invoice date, branch, sales dollars, commission %, commission \$, status (pay or hold) and costing information (optional) (cost, gross margin \$ and gross margin %).
- Detail: summary information and breaks down each invoice and prints all information for each line-item including quantity and price.

Flag Commissions for Payment (SAU310), which is used to update the pay/hold status codes in the commission file. Commissions on hold are changed to Pay if the invoice in the open documents file was removed (indicating it was paid) or the current balance is zero. This program is optional. If your company only pays commissions on invoices that have been paid, then invoices will automatically post into the commission file as hold based on the Post Commission flag set in the SA Static Control F/M. This program checks the commissions on hold (H), and if the customer has paid its invoice, the status will be changed to pay (P).

Documents with a hold status appear on the SA Commission Report as unpaid sales.

The Commissions Inquiry (SAI624) program enables you to review a salesperson's commissions by invoice. For each invoice listed, the program displays the invoice date, the branch, customer, invoice total (sales), cost of goods sold, the percentage of commission, the actual amount of commission, and the status of the commission, i.e., whether or not the commission was paid.

#### **SA File Maintenances Work Flow**

#### **Frequent File Maintenances**

File Maintenance programs allow you to enter, change and delete data. These programs are used to enter the initial data required to set up the system (refer to Installation Manual).

You may find that you use certain file maintenances often, while others you only use during installation. We refer to the latter as Infrequent File Maintenances.

Branch Data Entry (SAE910), which is used to create and maintain the SA branch file that includes sales and costing information for the current period and 26 previous periods.

Customer Data Entry SAE915), which is used to create and maintain the SA customer by ship-to file that includes sales and costing information for the current period and 26 previous periods.

Salesperson Data Entry (SAE920), which is used create and maintain the SA salesperson/territory file, which includes sales and costing information for the current period and 26 previous periods.

Item Data Entry (SAE925), which is used to create and maintain the SA item file that includes sales, costing and units sold for the current period and the 26 previous periods.

Item Class Data Entry (SAE930), which is used to create and maintain the SA item class file that includes sales, costing and unit sales information for the current period and 26 previous periods.

Customer/Item Data Entry (SAE935), which is used to create and maintain the SA customer/item file that includes sales, costing and unit sales information for the current period and 26 previous periods. The information in this file is used to print the following reports: Customer/Item Multiperiod Analysis and Item/Customer Multiperiod Analysis.

Customer/Item Class Data Entry (SAE940), which is used to create and maintain the SA customer/Item class file that include sales and costing information for the current period and 26 previous periods. The information in this file is used to print the following reports: Customer/Item Multiperiod Analysis and Item/Customer Multiperiod Analysis.

Salesperson/Item Class Data Entry (SAE945), which is used to create and maintain the SA salesperson/Item class file, which includes sales and costing information for the current period and 26 previous periods. The information in this file is used to print the following reports: Salesperson/Item Class Multiperiod Analysis and Item Class/Salesperson Multiperiod Analysis.

Item/Warehouse F/M (SAF950), which is used to create and maintain the SA item/warehouse file that includes sales, costing and unit sales figures for the current period and 26 previous periods. The information in this file is used to print the Item/Warehouse Multiperiod Analysis.

Item/Invoice F/M (SAF955), which is used to create and maintain the SA item/invoice file which includes for each item sold the invoice number, line number, customer number, dollar sales, cost, unit sales, register date, and warehouse. The information in this file is used to print the Current Period Item/Invoice Analysis.

Customer/Item MTD Data Entry (SAE960), which is used to create and maintain the SA MTD, YTD customer/item file which includes month-to-date and year-to-date customer, item

and ship-to information. The information in this file is used to print the following reports: Customer/Item MTD, YTD Analysis and Item/Customer MTD, YTD Analysis.

Temporary Item F/M (SAF965), which is used to create and maintain the SA temporary item file that will be used to print the Temporary Item Report. Items that have been entered in the IC Temporary Item F/M carry over to this program. The report shows information regarding the most recent sales of temporary items as well as cumulative data.

Lot Item F/M (SAF975), which is used to create and maintain the SA item lot file, which includes purchase information and sales information on each lot item number. The information in this file is used to print the Item Lots Report.

Serial Item F/M (SAF970), which is used to create and maintain the serial item file, which includes purchase information and sales information on each serial number item. The information in this file is used to print the Serial Item Report.

#### **Infrequent File Maintenances**

File maintenance programs allow the user to enter, change and delete data. These programs are used to enter the initial data required to set up the system (refer to the Installation Manual).

The user can add, change and delete the records in a file. This is called maintaining the file. Some file maintenance programs may be used often where others are used less frequently. There is an Infrequent File Maintenances menu for the latter programs; most of these are used only one time during the initial set up of the system. However, the information in the infrequent file maintenances may be updated by the system. An example would be the Nonstatic Control F/M which keeps track of the payroll period and all the check register trace numbers.

All files, once set up, are maintained and updated by the system. Most file maintenances in the payroll system do not need to be maintained by the user and it is unlikely that they will be used.

Static Control F/M (SAF980) contains a number of settings that affect how the SA module operates; it is critical to how Sales Analysis functions.

CAUTION: Infor™ strongly recommends that administrators password-protect this program. Changes should be made only with extreme caution and under the supervision of your Affiliate.

Use the SM System Clean Up F/M program to periodically purge Sa data from your files to limit file storage requirement so you do not exceed your disk space usage. If your system is running a Providx database instead of using an SQL database, running this program will not get rid of files. Running the purge does not shrink files table structure but removes the data to make room for new data. When you run this program, it removes the period records in each file according to user input. You can create a template so that this data does not have to be entered every time the program is run. For each file that is set up in the SA Static Control record as being used, you can the number of periods to retain this information. Each SA data file can have a different number of periods to store the information. The program will remove the records that are older than the number of periods selected. The Commission File

is not affected by the End-of-Period Update. The commission file is cleared by the optional update at the end of the Commission Report.

## **SA Transaction Procedures**

### **Recommended Operating Procedures**

#### Daily Procedures (or as needed)

1 Run SM System Clean Up F/M as needed

The SM System Clean Up F/M program removes the period records in each file according to user input. For each file that is set up in the SA Static Control record as being used, you can enter the number of periods to retain this information. Each SA data file can have a different number of periods to store the information. The program will remove the records that are older than the number of periods selected. The Commission File is not affected by the SM System Clean Up F/M program. The commission file is cleared by the optional update at the end of the Commission Report.

- 2 Run Flag Commissions for Payment program
- 3 Run/update Commission Report
- 4 Print necessary reports

#### Posting invoices to sales analysis

- 1 Access this program by choosing Sales Analysis>Post Invoices to SA> Post Invoices to SA.
- 2 The program displays the first invoice on file for the Sales Orders, Accounts Receivable, Job Cost, and Equipment Rental modules.
- 3 In the Post From SO input, enter Y or N to indicate whether you want to post from the Sales Orders holding file. The program defaults to Y. If you enter N, the program skips the Beginning Invoice and Ending Invoice inputs. The program skips this input if there are no invoices in the SO holding file.
- 4 In the Beginning Invoice and Ending Invoice inputs, enter the first and last invoice in the SO holding file that you want to post to Sales Analysis.
- 5 In the Post From AR input, enter Y or N to indicate whether you want to post from the Accounts Receivable holding file. The program defaults to Y. If you enter N, the program skips the Beginning Invoice and Ending Invoice inputs. The program skips this input if there are no invoices in the AR holding file.
- 6 In the Beginning Invoice and Ending Invoice inputs, enter the first and last invoice in the AR holding file that you want to post to Sales Analysis.

- 7 In the Post From JC input, enter Y or N to indicate whether you want to post from the Job Costing holding file. The program defaults to Y. If you enter N, the program skips the Beginning Invoice and Ending Invoice inputs. The program skips this input if there are no invoices in the JC holding file.
- 8 In the Beginning Invoice and Ending Invoice inputs, enter the first and last invoice in the JC holding file that you want to post to Sales Analysis.
- 9 At the command prompt, the system displays the message: End of Inputs. Enter Yes to continue, F4 -Backup. Type YES and press Enter to post the selected invoices to the Sales Analysis module.
- 10 The system updates the SA files for the specified invoices and displays update information at the bottom of the screen.
- 11 When the processing is complete, the system displays a message indicating the program is complete. Press OK to exit the program.